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road tunnels, both of which are over four-tenths of a 
mile long. 
  
 Beginning in the 1820s, business interests in 
Northern Kentucky advocated the construction of a 
railroad linking central and/or eastern Kentucky with 
either Covington or Newport.  These early efforts, 
although ardent, failed because of both the economic 
factors of the times and the unsettled issue as to 
which city would be the terminus of the proposed 
railroad.9  In 1849, the Kentucky General Assembly 
resolved the latter matter by authorizing the creation 
of the Covington and Lexington Railroad Company, 
thus designating Covington as the terminus.  Later 
legislation also provided for financing of the project 
with subscriptions raised by cities and counties 
through which the railroad would pass.  Financing 
was in fact readily secured, and, in 1850, surveyor 
Sylvester Welch recommended the Licking River Val-
ley as the most feasible right-of-way for the laying of 
rails.  Starting in Covington, the right-of-way would 
proceed south, closely following the Kenton County 
or western bank of the Licking River.10 
 
 The proposed route generally offered continu-
ous level land near the river on which to lay tracks.  
Grants Bend, however, presented an obstacle.  It 
made little practical or economic sense to have the 
tracks follow the curvature of the river at that point.  
A much shorter route would be across the neck of 
Grants Bend, but that likewise presented its own 
problem.  The same high ground which rose over 350 
feet above the river level at that point, causing the 
river to change course toward the northeast, prohibit-
ed easy transit.11  The only logical solution was a mas-
sive tunnel.  At 2,150 feet in length, it would be the 
longest tunnel on the Covington and Lexington Rail-
road and by far the longest tunnel in Northern Ken-
tucky.12  

 Since the creation of Kenton County in 1840, 
the Licking River has served as the boundary with 
neighboring Campbell County to the east.  Although 
the river generally follows a leisurely course to the 
north between the two counties, an interesting thing 
happens at about the halfway mark.  Because of high 
ground in both counties, the river veers northeast, 
only to make a 180-degree turn to the southwest fol-
lowed by another 180-degree turn back to the north-
east before resuming its northward flow to the Ohio 
River.  This sinuous meandering of the Licking River 
results in corresponding “thumbs” of each county 
jutting into the other. 
 
 The Kenton County “thumb” is called Grants 
Bend,1 named after a prominent Northern Kentucky 
family who owned large expanses of land on both 
sides of the Licking River.2  In 1815, General Squire 
Boone Grant built a large log house facing the Lick-
ing River on the eastern side of Grants Bend.  Named 
Errondale, the house is now in ruins.  The family 
cemetery remains beside it, however, containing the 
graves of many early members of the Grant family.3  
Over the course of time, Grants Bend developed its 
own small community with its own post office,4 ferry 
landing,5 schoolhouse,6 alleged Indian burial ground,7 
other small family cemeteries (some no doubt lost to 
time),8 and, as we shall see, a railroad station.  Be-
cause of its odd geographical configuration and some-
what limited connection to the rest of Kenton Coun-
ty, however, it has remained an isolated area, accessi-
ble only by a few narrow and twisting roads -- un-
known to and unvisited by the vast majority of people 
in Northern Kentucky. 
     
 There is one major development, however, 
that impacted Grants Bend, not only disturbing its 
tranquility but giving it a distinction no other North-
ern Kentucky community can claim.  It has twin rail-
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 Although there is little information about the 
actual work on the tunnel, we do know that it was 
constructed of stone up to seven feet on the side walls 
and then arched with a total of 500,000 bricks.13  It 
was completed in the spring of 1852.14  In May of 
that year, the railroad planned a celebration by offer-
ing a special passenger train for those wanting to see 
the tunnel in person.  An account in The Covington 
Journal described the event: 

On Saturday afternoon last the Directors of the 
Covington and Lexington Railroad fitted up a 
train of ten cars and conveyed about one thou-
sand persons, many of them ladies, to the large 
tunnel at Grant’s Bend, 10 miles out of Coving-
ton.  The run was made at moderate speed that 
the company might have an opportunity of view-
ing the work and the country through which it 
passed.  Arriving at the entrance, the train was 

stopped to give those who felt disposed an oppor-
tunity to walk through, and examine the massive 
tunnel.  Many walked through.  The larger por-
tion, however, preferred to ride and accordingly, 
the iron horse was put at it and with his train 
plunged into the “bowels of the earth.”  A thou-
sand lights, hung at intervals along the walls, 
dispersed just enough darkness to make what re-
mained visible, while the smoke from the locomo-
tive added to the gloom, and caused one to think 
of the “smoke of their torment.”  The locomotive 
moved along with a clanking sound, breathing as 
if in a mighty struggle; the boys shouted; the girls 
screamed – perhaps some swooned; the men took 
care of the women, while the women took care of 
their bonnets and shawls.  Directly, the train 
emerged into the open air to the great relief of the 
anxious. 

Above: Home of General Squire Boone Grant, overlooking the Licking River on the Campbell County side (now in ruins). 

Cover:  Tunnels at Grants Bend, Kenton County 
 

Above photo courtesy www.nkyviews.com     Cover image courtesy the author 
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 The paper further noted that the tunnel ap-
peared to be “substantially and accurately built,” and 
that all were “seemingly delighted with the excur-
sion.”15 

  
 Over 50 years later, another newspaper ac-
count gave a slightly less-glowing report.  In an article 
noting the celebration of Dr. William N.L. Arm-
strong’s 92nd birthday, it was recalled that he married 
Augusta Ann Rusk on May 12, 1853, and celebrated 
his honeymoon by taking his new bride on the 
Grants Bend tunnel excursion.  A friend recalled that 
the tunnel was lighted by candles stuck in mud cups.  
The train had 10 flat cars on which seats were placed 
crosswise for the crowds.  Many a coat sleeve caught 
fire from cinders.  The bride’s bonnet was ruined by 
sparks.  That was the extent of the honeymoon jour-
ney through the tunnel, from Pye’s Station, a distance 
of about two miles.  Apparently, the Armstrongs had 
their fill of adventure.  The article ends by noting that 
with the exception of four months, “they spent their 
entire wedded life in the [nearby] old log cabin” in 
which Dr. Armstrong had been raised.16  
 
 For over the next half-century, the Grants 
Bend tunnel served its purpose permitting freight and 
passengers to traverse that part of the county both 
north and south.  Wheat and hogs constituted much 
of the freight from Central Kentucky to processors in 
Covington and Cincinnati while local industries 
shipped its manufactured products to the south.17  
Residents of Kenton County benefitted by a local 
train (“The Butler”) and stations located every few 
miles.  An 1883 atlas of the area shows a Lambs Sta-
tion at the southern entrance to the tunnel, with a 
Grant Station and a Pye’s Station to the north.  
Ryland Station is found a few miles to the south.18  

The latter station was particularly important to han-
dle the large number of city dwellers seeking summer 
relief at the Crystal Lake Fishing Club founded in 
1892.19  No doubt the ride through the tunnel added 
to the sense of outdoor adventure. 
 
 Meanwhile, the company operating the rail-
road underwent several transformations.  Within a 
decade of its founding, the Covington and Lexington 
Railroad Company defaulted on bond interest and 
ended up in court.  It emerged from those legal pro-

ceedings as the Kentucky Central Railroad Associa-
tion, an entity “formed for the express purpose of op-
erating and acquiring the properties formerly owned 
by the Covington and Lexington, and, in general, ti-
dying up things a bit.”20  In 1871, a new company, 
the Kentucky Central Railroad Company, was incor-
porated, and eventually took over all properties of the 
Association in 1875.  The new company was in turn 
acquired in 1881 by interests controlled by railroad 
baron Collis P. Huntington, but fell into receivership 
in 1886.  The name was again changed to the Ken-
tucky Central Railway until it was acquired in its en-
tirety by the Louisville and Nashville Railroad in 
1891.21  Thereafter, the Northern Kentucky portion 
of the railroad was known as the Kentucky Central 
Division, and, later, the Knoxville Division, of the 
Louisville and Nashville Railroad. 

Above: 1888 map of the Grants Bend region.  R. top: Morning 

View Station.  R. Bottom: two views of the tunnels. 
 

Courtesy www.nkyviews.com 
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 An important standardization change during 
this time dealt with track width.  During the 1800’s, 
most railroads in the South, including the Covington 
and Lexington Railroad, used a 5’ gauge for its rails 
while Northern railroads used a standard 4’8 ½” or 
4’9” gauge.22  In order to have conformity with its 
connecting railroads to the East, the Huntington in-
terests adopted the 4’ 9” gauge for the Kentucky Cen-
tral In 1881.  Five years later, Southern railroads, led 
in part by the Louisville and Nashville Railroad, decid-
ed to adopt the 4’9” gauge as a whole.  The Louisville 
and Nashville Railroad made that change in one day – 
Sunday, May 30, 1886 – when train traffic was 
stopped and 8000 men labored to alter 2000 miles of 
track.  This was accomplished by presetting the interi-
or spikes for the new rail and removing alternate inte-
rior spikes on the existing rail.  On the actual day of 
the conversion, the west rail was slid over three inches 
and the new exterior spikes put in place.  Narrow tun-
nels presented a special problem as it was sometimes 
necessary to move both rails 1½ inches inward.23  It is 
quite possible that the tunnel at Grants Bend had pre-
sented such a problem in the earlier 1881 conversion. 
  
 Another transportation advancement, howev-
er, would have a much larger impact on Grants Bend.   
Larger locomotives and railway cars were being built, 
challenging the dimensions of bridges and tunnels 
constructed years before.  As a result, a major recon-
struction of the Grants Bend tunnel began in 1905.  
Two hundred men, living in tents on the worksite and 
working with drills and dynamite, labored in 
crouched positions to both widen and raise the di-
mensions of the tunnel an additional four feet.24   The 
old brick ceiling and stone walls were removed by 
blasting and replaced with solid concrete.  Because of 
trouble securing laborers, the construction superinten-
dent noted that “all of the brick that is being taken 
from the tunnel is being thrown over the embank-
ment, for the reason that I can get no one to pick up 
the brick and clean them.”  The same superintendent 
also stated that he had built and reconstructed many 
tunnels, but that Grants Bend tunnel was “the biggest 
of them all.”25  
  
 With work going on day and night, the project 
progressed quickly.  On March 8, 1907, the Kentucky 
Post reported that 600 feet of the new work had been  

 

Typical train schedule for the Kentucky Central Railroad, this 

one printed in the Daily Commonwealth of September 1879 
 

Courtesy Kenton County Public Library 
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completed.26  The Cincinnati Enquirer reported on Jan-
uary 23, 1908, that the reconstruction would be com-
pleted that day and that “a number of officials will 
inspect the work.”  When completed, it was estimated 
that the work on the new tunnel had cost a total of 
$200,000.28  
          
 Reconstruction of the 1853 tunnel, however, 
was only the beginning of major work at Grants 
Bend.  To accommodate rail traffic going both north 
and south, the Louisville and Nashville Railroad de-
cided to build a second tunnel.  The new tunnel was 
to be constructed immediately to the east of the origi-
nal (now reconstructed) tunnel, but it would not be 
exactly parallel.  The original tunnel was a straight 
line, permitting the viewer to see from one end to the 
other.  Although the south portal of the new tunnel 
was immediately adjacent to the south portal of the 
original tunnel, the new tunnel would angle slightly 
to the east before making a curve to the west prior to 
exiting the north portal.  As a result, one looking into 
the second tunnel would only see darkness and not a 
light at the other end.  Also, while the two south por-
tals could be viewed together, the north portals would 
be separated by a few hundred feet and not visible to 
each other.    Because the differing exits at the north 
portals, the new tunnel – at 2,100 feet -- would be 
slightly shorter than the original.29 

 

 The construction contract was awarded to 
Boxley Brothers which began work from each end of 
the proposed tunnel in the summer of 1911.  Period-
ic newspaper articles reported on the progress of that 
construction as well as the work laying a second set of 
tracks along the length of the line.30  In December 
1911, slippage of earth at Grants Bend near the Lick-
ing River caused a delay in construction until “experts 
from the East” could determine the cause of the slip-
page.31  The crews digging the tunnel met in the mid-
dle in February 1912, and the finishing concrete 
work followed32.  The new tunnel, completed in the 
autumn of 1912, cost about $225.000.33 
  
 The work on both tunnels was not without 
human cost.  Although there is no readily available 
information on the construction of the original tun-
nel in the 1850’s, the work in the early 1900’s did 
result in both injuries and the loss of life.  A newspa-

per report on the reconstruction of the original tun-
nel noted that only one man was killed during that 
work, “and that occurred when there was not the 
least danger imminent.”34   There was no further ex-
planation of that statement.  In July 1910, a Kenton 
County jury awarded J.H. Runyon $1,950 for injuries 
suffered during the reconstruction – evidence that 
accidents did occur.35  
 
 Other accounts suggest that the Licking River 
itself presented an equal hazard for workers.  In July 
1906, the Cincinnati Enquirer reported that a “negro 
employed in reconstructing the L. and N. tunnel near 
Grant’s Bend” drowned in the river.36  A similar 
drowning report in July 1907 provided more dra-
matic detail.  W.H. McGee, an assistant foreman on 
the reconstruction project, left the workers’ camp on 
a weekend day “to go to a road house on the other 
side of the river.”  When word reached the camp that 
“trouble was brewing on the other side,” two other 
workers set off in a skiff to bring McKee back to 
camp.  Unfortunately, the rescue effort failed.  The 
skiff capsized on the return trip, and McKee, who 
could not swim, was lost.37 

 

 The construction of the second tunnel like-
wise resulted in the loss of life.  Viola Ferdinand, a 41
-year-old Hungarian, was injured by falling rock in 
1911.  Taken to St. Elizabeth Hospital, he developed 
pneumonia and died a few days later.38  The more 
sensationally reported death, however, was that of 
Thomas F. Haywood, a 28-year-old civil engineer 
from Cove City, N.C., , employed by Boxley Brothers  
as the resident engineer on the construction project.  
While taking notes on October 23, 1912, he failed to 
hear the approach of a train exiting the old tunnel “at 
a very rapid rate of speed.”  The train struck him 
from behind, throwing his body “a great distance.”  
The top of his head having “been completely sev-
ered”, he quickly died.39   Compared with this, Wal-
ter Stephens of Covington was fortunate in suffering 
only a wrenched back and a fractured left leg in a 
twenty-foot fall at the tunnel earlier that same year.40 

        
 With the completion of the new tunnel in 
1912, construction at Grants Bend ended. Although 
passenger service and local trains are a thing of the 
past, freight trains have continued to use the tunnels 



on a daily basis for now over a century.  Although the 
tracks may look the same, the name of the company 
operating the rail system has, as it had in the 1800’s, 
undergone several name changes.  The Louisville and 
Nashville Railroad, which at one time had exerted 
tremendous influence in the politics and economy of 
Kentucky became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 
Seaboard Coastline Railroad in 1971.  It was com-
pletely merged into the Seaboard System Railroad in 
1982, ending its 132-year existence.  The Seaboard 
System Railroad in turn merged with The Chessie 
System in 1986 to become CSX Transportation – the 
present operator of the rail traffic through Grants 
Bend.41 

 

 Today, Grants Bend retains its isolated char-
acter.  A sparse mixture of houses can be found, but 
they are built back from the road and apart from each 
other and driving on the narrow roads is a lonely ex-
perience.  The northern portals of the tunnels cannot 
be seen from any roadway, and one wishing to see 
them must find a place to park and then hike along 
the rails for a moderate distance.  The southern por-
tals of the twin tunnels, on the other hand, are easily 
seen from the only road in Grants Bend that actually 
crosses the tracks.  Although remote, it is clear that all 
of the portals and the tunnels themselves attract at-
tention from railroad enthusiasts and the occasional 
thrill-seeker.42  Graffiti is found at all the portals and 
extends briefly into the tunnels.  The arched ceilings 
have been blackened by the passage of thousands of 
trains through the dark interiors.  One can see the 
distant light of the far end in the original tunnel, but 
the view into the newer tunnel quickly fades into 
darkness.  If one is lucky, you may witness a freight 
train entering or exiting one of the tunnels, its horn 
announcing the beginning or end of yet another pas-
sage and the sole crossing gate flashing its warning 

lights.  But one generally hears nothing, and the tun-
nels remain silent. 
 
 As one might expect, there is a ghost story 
associated with Grants Bend.  Allegedly, a man – ei-
ther a railroad employee or a person walking along 
the tracks – was struck and killed in the 1930’s by a 
passing train.  The story is that he may sometimes be 
seen walking near one of the tunnel entrances carry-
ing a lantern, searching for something unknown to 
the living.43  Perhaps there is a basis for the story.  
Following a heavy rainstorm in 1925, an engine and a 
baggage car plunged over a hill at Grants Bend, kill-
ing two of the crewman and injuring another.44  Or, 
perhaps, the story simply arises from fertile minds 
stimulated by the isolation and mysterious allure of 
the tunnels. 
 
 What cannot be denied, however, is a silent, 
lingering sense of the presence of hundreds of work-
ers who lived in camps in the area and labored on 
these narrow passages through the towering earth 
above and the thousands of trainsmen who have trav-
ersed the tunnels for well over 150 years.  There are 
no plaques or other markers noting who these men 
were or the labors they performed.  With rare excep-
tions, their names are lost to history.  The tunnels, 
still used daily by succeeding generations, are the only 
monuments to their memories and to their contribu-
tions to rail transportation in Northern Kentucky. 
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A Look Back 
at The Headlines 

An on-going feature reliving local headlines. 
This issue features: 

The Daily Commonwealth — December 13, 1884. 
 
 
 

Our History 
 

 Kentucky was simply Kentucky County, Vir-
ginia as late as 1780, when it was divided into Jeffer-
son, Fayette and Lincoln counties.  Kentucky was not 
admitted as a state until February 4, 1791.  Campbell 
County was formed from parts of Fayette in 1794 and 
the first county seat was at Wilmington on the Lick-
ing River, about 22 miles south of Newport.  The 
county seat was fixed at Visalia in 1827, on the idea 
of having it in the center of the county.  Newport lat-
er became the county seat and in 1840 Kenton Coun-
ty was established, with Independence as the county 
seat.  
 

Local News Items 
 

 

The river is still rising with over eight feet of water in 
the channel. 
 

Pure candies available at Echerts. 
 

Best quality of headlamp oil 15 cents per gallon, de-
livered to all parts of the city by Nodler. 
 

M.C. Motch is the best place to buy spectacles. 
 

Capt. T.B. Matthews is minus a wonderful overcoat, 
purloined by some sneak thieves from the Internal 
Revenue Service. 
 

Buy your silk mufflers and fine gloves at Keuven. 
 

P.B. Rice & Co., the livery stable men at 4th and 
Madison streets, hired a horse and buggy Thursday to 
two young men.  The buggy was found yesterday com-
pletely destroyed but the buggy and two men are still 
missing. 
 

Fresh nuts & caramels at Echert’s, 4th and Madison. 

 

Want to be Published? 
 

We are always looking for material for the Bulletin, 
as well as Northern Kentucky Heritage magazine. 

 

To submit an article for the Bulletin, send a paper copy by 
mail, or email it as a Word document to the address below.  

(less than 500 words with at least two references) 
Articles for the magazine should be more than 500 words and 

have full endnotes, as well as several images or graphics. 
 

nkyhist@zoomtown.com. 

P.O. Box 641, Covington, KY  41012 

Enquirer, November 7, 1911, at 9. 

32. “Center of New Tunnel,” Cincinnati Enquirer, April 27, 1912, at 

7. 

33. “L. & N. Tunnel Nearly Done,” Kentucky Post, August 7, 1912, 

at 2; “Tunnel Work of Railroad Completed,” Kentucky Times-Star, 

August 7, 1912, at 10. 

34. “Tunnel Nearing Completion,” Cincinnati Enquirer, August 17, 

1907, at 10.  See also “Rebuilding Big Tunnel,” Cincinnati Enquirer, 

March 8, 1907, at 5 (Superintendent states he “never had a man in-

jured or killed in my 32 years of this sort of work, until the other 

day . . . .”); “Rebuilding Tunnel,” Cincinnati Enquirer, September 28, 

1907, at 5 (”But one serious accident has occurred.”). 

35. “Runyon Gets Verdict,” Cincinnati Enquirer, February 12, 1910, 

at 11. 

36. “Clarence Deal,” Cincinnati Enquirer, July 5, 1906, at 10.  This is 

one of the few references to the ethnic background of the workers of 

the railroad projects.  Local historian John Burns wrote that the crews 

which laid the original tracks in the 1850’s were largely Irish, a fact 

apparently leading to at least one notable brawl south of Covington.  

John E. Burns, A sitortHisHistory of Covington, Kentucky Through 

1865 (Karl J. Lietzenmayer, ed.) (Kenton County Historical Society 

2012), at 165.  As suggested by the drowning recounted in the text, 

there is evidence that many of the workers in the early 1900’s were 

black.  In discussing a storm that hit the Grants Bend construction 

area in July 1907, one newspaper account noted that “the negroes 

fled to their huts.”  “No Serious Damage,” Cincinnati Enquirer, July 

8, 1907, at 7.  In a 1911 cave-in at the Buena Vista tunnel site near 

Latonia, the newspapers reported that “about 25 negroes [were] at 

work” during the accident.  Two men died.  Both were black laborers 

– one from Virginia and one from Alabama.  “1 Killed: 4 Injured in 

Tunnel Cave-in,” Kentucky Post, July 25, 1911, at 3; “Another Vic-

tim of Tunnel Accident,” Cincinnati Enquirer, July 26, 1911, at 4.      

37. “One Drowned,” Cincinnati Enquirer, July 16, 1907, at 11. 

38. “Hurt in Tunnel at Grants Bend in Kentucky,” Kentucky Post, 

September 19, 1911, at 3. 

39. “His Head Severed,” Cincinnati Enquirer, October 24, 1912, at 9; 

“Tunnel Engineer Killed by Train,” Kentucky Post, October 23, 

1912, at 1. 

40. “Fell From Trestle,” Cincinnati Enquirer, April 27, 1912, at 15. 

41. Charles B. Castner, A Brief History of the Louisville and Nash-

ville Railroad, found at www.lnrr.org/History.aspx. 

42. Several videos taken at and in the tunnels can be found on the 

internet.  These can be found by typing either “Grants Bend Tunnel” 

or “Lambs Ferry Tunnel” in your browser or at www.youtube.com. 

43. See “12 Creepy Urban Legends Around Kentucky,”  at 

www.onlyinyourstate.com/kentucky/urban-legend-ky; “The Twin 

Train Tunnels,” at www.creepycincinnati.com/2011/11/05/the-twin-

train-tunnels.   

44. “Train Wreck,” Kentucky Post, February 24, 1925, at 1. 
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Then and Now 

 
 

Left: Aerial view of the Coach & Four restaurant being razed in 2003.  
Now standing on that spot is the Ascent at Roebling Bridge. 

 

Left photo courtesy Cincinnati Enquirer, right courtesy Wikipedia.com 

 ANSWER: 

Mystery Photo 
 

Can you identify the mystery photo below?  The answer can be found at the bottom of the page. 

A small portion of the sign atop Giuseppe’s Neighborhood Pizza, just south of 
15th and Madison streets, Covington.  



 

Programs and Notices 
 

  

Published bi-monthly by 

The Kenton County Historical Society 
Membership, which includes the Bulletin, 

$20.00 per year 
 

 

President………...……………...… Robert Webster 
Vice-President……..…….…. Karl Lietzenmayer  
Treasurer……………..…….…. W. Terry Averbeck 
Secretary…………..………...……….…..John H. Boh 

 

Board Members: 
Carl Gerrein, Dennis Harrell, 

Dr. Eric Jackson, Elaine Kuhn, 
Robert Rich, Iris Spoor, and 

Dick Johanneman (Ex Officio) 

I Bet You Didn’t Know 
Tidbits from Kentucky’s heritage 
for every day of the calendar year 

 

 

     May 5, 1973: Secretariat became 
the first horse to run the Kentucky 
Derby in under two minutes.      
 

     May 15, 1900:  An 11,520 ton 
battleship, the USS Kentucky, was 
commissioned for service.  It was 
scrapped in 1924. 
 

     May 28, 1977: 169 people were 
killed and nearly 100 more were 
injured in a fire at the Beverly Hills 
Supper Club in Southgate.  2017 
marks the 40th Anniversary of what 
remains Kentucky’s worst disaster. 
 

      June 11, 1864: Half the town of 
Cynthiana was destroyed in the 2nd 
Civil war fought there. 
 

      June 26, 1959: “The Stephen 
Foster Story,” by Paul Green, premi-
ered at the outdoor theater at My 
Old Kentucky Home in Bardstown. 

“On This Day In Kentucky” — Robert Powell 

Upcoming KCHS Events 
 

Robert Webster, author of The Beverly Hills Supper Club, The Untold Story 
Behind Kentucky’s Worst Tragedy, will review the history of Beverly Hills, 
and the fire itself.  169 people were killed 40 years ago on May 28. 1977. 
Mr. Webster will do a PowerPoint presentation beginning at 10:30 AM. 
The date for the program will be Saturday, May 20, the place will be the 
Kenton County Public Library, Erlanger Branch.  The program will be 
free and open to the public. 
 
The Kenton County Historical Society will again have its own booth at 
Roebling Fest, near the Roebling Suspension Bridge, at Court Street, 
Covington, Saturday, June 17, 10:30-5:30.  The event is free. 
 
The Kenton County Historical Society will again have its own booth at 
the Kenton County Fair in the evenings from Monday, July 10th through 
Friday, July 15th. 
 
The Kenton County Historical Society will celebrate its 40th anniversary 
with a picnic.  It will be at one of the shelters in Kenton County’s Pioneer 
Park on Saturday, July 15, 2017, noon to 4:00 PM.  Pioneer Park is locat-
ed at 3951 Madison Pike, Highway 17, along Banklick Creek.  Members, 
friends and the public are invited.  
 

Behringer Crawford Museum 
“Culture Bites: Northern Kentucky's Food Traditions,” will open April 
21st  and run through August 31st.   Students from NKU’s Public History 
department built the exhibit.  It will feature innumerable artifacts; many 
borrowed, many taken from the museum’s collections.  
 
The Behringer Crawford Museum will again present its annual music 
concert series - a variety of ensembles – brass band, Blues, Jazz, Bluegrass, 
Celtic and other folk flavors. The weekly schedule will run from May 
25th through August 10 on Thursday evenings. The doors open at 6:00.  
The performers begin at 7:00. Food from the Colonial Cottage restaurant 
can be purchased throughout the evening, and drinks from the cash bar 
and also soft drinks and bottled water. Reality Tuesday Café will donate 
unsweetened ice tea, available without charge. Adults $5.00, children (3-
12 years) $3.00.  Check the museum web site and social media. 

  

May/June 2017 

 Kenton County Historical Society 

ARTICLES FROM BACK ISSUES ARE INDEXED ON OUR WEBSITE! 
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